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Vision Statement

PICIC Insurance shall emerge as the leading insurance and risk management services
organization in Pakistan. We are in the business of providing solutions to mitigate
insurable risk exposure of our clients. We shall do this on the basis of thorough risk
evaluation and product knowledge.

Mission Statement

PICIC Insurance shall fully satisfy the needs and expectations of all its stakeholders:

» We shall put the interest of our clients first and ensure that they make informed
decisions with respect to the products and services that we offer them.

» We shall give our employees a congenial work environment and shall give them
opportunities for personal growth and development strictly on the basis of merit.

» We shall strive to continually provide above average returns to our shareholders.

» We shall support the development of the communities in which we live and work.

Core Values
Integrity

We make sure that our business interactions and relations with all the stakeholders are
delimited with honesty, loyalty and transparency

Excellence

Our commitment is to persistently strive for better and better, while we keep on building
upon our achievement.

Growth

We define our growth through nurturing and supplementing growth for our stakeholders.

Professionalism

We have a strong commitment to set high bars of quality service standards for our
internal and external clients; this will be supported with the pillars of expertise,
steadiness, dedication and business acumen
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Chairman’s Review Report

| am pleased to present Chairman’s Review report as required under section 192 of the Companies Act,
2017.

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of
PICIC Insurance Limited has been carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the
Board'’s overall performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the
context of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended December 31, 2024, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness has
been assessed as satisfactory, it is based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision,
mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the
organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight;
equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board’s business. Improvement is
an ongoing process leading to action plans.

The Board of Director of your company received agendas and supporting written material including follow
up material including follow up materials in sufficient time prior to the board and its committee meetings.
The board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The non-executive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions.

| would like to thank my fellow directors who had carried their responsibilities diligently.

Moiz Ali
Managing Director / CEO
Karachi: March 26, 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors ‘of your Company are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

Message from the Chairman

For the financial year ended December 31, 2024, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness has been assessed as
satisfactory, it is based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic
planning; monitor financial resource management. Improvement is an ongoing process leading to action plans.

The Company has stopped underwriting and is in the process of merger with Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited which is pending
before The High Court of Sindh. The Board has full confidence that once the merger is completed your company will unfold the
Business Plan and strategy after approval from the Board.

Future Outlook

Crescent Star Foods (Pvt.) Limited is in the process of merger with and into the Company which is pending approval by The Sind
High Court. Whereby the Company will be doing FMCG business.

The management is confident that after the merger, the Company will have adequate resources to effectively enter a new phase
with diversified interests to protect stake holders interest. The Company will unfold the Business Plan and strategy after the merger
is approved enabling the Company to remain a going concern.

Financial Highlights

The comparative financial highlights of your Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Gross Premium Written - -
Net Premium Revenue - -

Net Claims including IBNR - -

Loss from underwriting business (7,062) (5,948)

Investment Income 12,580 8,247

Profit / (loss) after Taxation 3,336 762

Earnings / (loss) per share (Rupees) 0.10 0.02
Auditors

The auditors M/s. Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.
Auditors’s Report

The auditors opinion of the Company not being a going concern is based on the fact that the business of the Company is
suspended. However, keeping the future outlook of the Company due to merger of Crescent Star Foods (Pvt.) Ltd with and into the
Company, the business activities of the company will be revived. Hence the Company will remain a going concern.

Statement of Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The corporate laws, rules and regulations framed thereunder spell out the overall functions of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities envisaged under the Code of Corporate Governance, prescribed
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and adopted by the Stock Exchanges for all listed companies, and is
pleased to certify that:



10.

1.

12.

The financial statements, prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under the Companies Act, 2017.
The Company has followed consistently appropriate accounting policies in preparation of the financial statements.
Changes wherever made, have been adequately disclosed and accounting estimates are on the basis of prudent and

reasonable judgment.

Approved Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial statements and
any departure therefrom, if any, has been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound, effectively implemented and monitored. The process of review will continue to
strengthen the system for its effective implementation.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Board of Directors does not recommend any Dividend for the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Company has followed the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance and there is no material departure
there from.

Key operating and financial data for last six years is annexed with the report.

All major decisions relating to the investments / disinvestments of funds, changes in the policies are taken by the
Investment Committee / Board of directors.

Decisions regarding appointment of CEO, CFO & Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, and fixing or changing
of remuneration are taken and approved by the Board.

Outstanding taxes and duties are given in the financial statements.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review four meetings were held and attended as follows:

Name No. of meetir.'lgs eligible to No. of meetings
attend during the tenure attended

Mr. Moiz Ali (Managing Director / CEO) 4 4

Mr. Haji Ashraf Dhedhi 4 4

Ms. Nudrat Fatima 4 4

Mr. Muhammad Ali 4 4

Leave of absence was granted to the directors unable to attend the meeting.

The Board has developed a mechanism to evaluate its own performance by adopting self- evaluation methodology through an
agreed questionnaire. The mechanism devised is based on the emerging and leading trends on the functioning of the Board and
improving its effectiveness. The evaluation exercise is carried out every year.

Managing Director's performance is monitored and evaluated by the Board against the job description set by the Board.

Board Committee Meetings

Board has constituted various committees at Board level for effective control and operation.

Audit Committee

During the year 2024, four meetings were held and attendance was as follows:

Attendance

Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari (Chairman) -
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad 4
Mr. Muhammad Ali 4



Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
During the year 2024, one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held and attendance was as follows:
Attendance

Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari (Chairman) -

Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad 1

Mr. Moiz Ali 1

Investment Committee

During the year 2024, four meetings were held and attendance was as follows:

Attendance

Mr. Moiz Al

Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad

Mr. Muhammad Ali
Mr. Abdul Muhammad

A DA BAM

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing the pattern of shareholding is attached with this report.

Trading of Company’s Share

No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, CEO and Executives (employees with basic salary of
Rs.0.5M or above) or their spouses or minor children, if any.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The requirements of the Code set out by the stock exchanges in their listing regulations, relevant for the year ended December 31,
2024, have been duly complied with.

Code of Conduct

The Board has adopted a statement of Code of Conduct for directors and employees. Acknowledgment for compliance are obtained
and held by the Company.

Certificate of the Directors and Principal Officer under Section 46(6) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
We certify that:

(a) in our opinion the annual statutory accounts of the Company set out in the forms attached to the statements have been
drawn up in accordance with the Ordinance and rules made there under;

(b) the Company has at all times in the year complied with the provisions of the Ordinance and the rules made thereunder.
With regard to paid-up capital, solvency (refer notes to the financial statements note: 1.2) and reinsurance arrangements;
and

(c) as at the date of the statement, the Company continues to be in compliance with the provisions of the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the rules made there under relating to paid-up capital, solvency (refer notes to the financial
statements note: 1.2) and reinsurance arrangements.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors would like to express its sincere appreciation to the Company’s valued clients, reinsurers, brokers, business
partners and other stakeholders. The Board would also like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the
Stock Exchanges and the Central Depository Company for their continued guidance and support. The Company’s accomplishments
would not have been possible without the dedication and commitment of the Company’s motivated & dedicated employees; they
deserve special recognition on behalf of the Board.

Haji Ashraf Dhedhi Moiz Ali
Director Managing Director / CEO
Karachi: March 26, 2025
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Key Financial Highlights

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Paid up share Capital 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000
Reserve 8,128 6,492 3,690 1,693 1,294 - -
Accumulated (loss) (369,102) (372,438) (373,200) (370,131) (369,300) (367,994) (365,819)
Investment Income 12,580 8,247 4,661 3,359 4,751 4,515 2,347
Return on bank balances - - 1 - 1 18 57
Total Assets 105,307 92,973 83,167 79,225 75,601 70,818 67,011
Gross Premiums Written - - - - - - -
Net Premium Revenue - - - - - - -
(Loss) / Profit from underwriting business - - - - - - (10,929)
Net Claims - - - - - - -
Profit / (loss) before Taxation 5,218 1,999 (338) (831) (12) (1,705) (8,914)
Provision for Taxation (1,882) (1,237) (2,731) - - (470) (2,885)
Profit / (loss) after Taxation 3,336 762 (3,069) (432) (12) (2,175) (11,799)

Earning / (loss) per share (in Rupees) 0.10 0.02 (0.09) (0.02) - (0.06) (0.34)



PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding

Information as required under Code of Corporate Governance
As at December 31, 2024

Shareholder's Category

Number of

Number of

Shareholders Shares Held

Mutual Funds

Asian Stock Fund Ltd

Safeway Mutual Fund Limited

Goldeun Arrow Selected Stocks Fund Ltd
Prudential Stocks Funds Limited

PICIC Benovelent Fund-2

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse minor children.

Mr. Irshad Ali Shaban Ali Kassim
Mr. Munamer Ali Kassim

Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari
Mr. Moiz Ali

Public Sector Companies & Corporations

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance
Institutions, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Mudaraba and Pension

Fund

Shareholder Holding five percent or more voting Rights in the Listed

Company

State Life Insurance Corp. Of Pakistan
Salim Sozer Securities (Pvt) Ltd

_ A A A

_ A A

32

19
22
35
44

1,000
1,000
500
500

3,895,970

2,548,621

3,895,970
3,220,691



PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding

Additional Inforamtion
As at December 31, 2024

Shareholder's Category Number of Number of Percentage
Shareholders Shares
Directors, Chief Executive Officer Their Spouse(S) &
Minor Children.
Mr. Irshad Ali Shaban Ali Kassim 1 1,000 0.00
Mr. Munawar Ali Kassim 1 1,000 0.00
Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari 1 500 0.00
Mr. Moiz Ali 1 500 0.00
Banks DFI & NBFI. 13 6,137 0.02
Insurance Companies 7 2,542,224 7.26
Modarabas & Mutual Funds 12 386 0.00
Individuals 3,185 29,069,241 83.05
Joint Stock Companies 51 3,347,878 9.57
Others 24 31,134 0.09
Total 3,296 35,000,000 100.00




PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding as at December 31, 2024

Number of Shareholding Number of
Sharehoders From To Shares Held
1738 1 100 41,706
535 101 500 148,018
203 501 1000 175,344
405 1001 5000 1,086,011
120 5001 10000 982,704
53 10001 15000 678,632
45 15001 20000 830,560
31 20001 25000 719,818
13 25001 30000 373,875
18 30001 35000 603,357
9 35001 40000 349,411
2 40001 45000 85,500
16 45001 50000 785,277
6 50001 55000 317,928
6 55001 60000 353,596
3 65001 70000 209,500
5 70001 75000 368,474
4 75001 80000 316,235
2 80001 85000 167,000
4 85001 90000 352,719
2 90001 95000 190,000
17 95001 100000 1,696,000
1 100001 105000 104,424
1 105001 110000 110,000
1 120001 125000 121,000
1 125001 130000 130,000
3 130001 135000 399,997
3 135001 140000 416,240
3 140001 145000 426,511
3 145001 150000 449,560
6 150001 155000 917,759
1 155001 160000 158,883
1 165001 170000 168,000
5 195001 200000 1,000,000
2 210001 215000 422,753
1 220001 225000 224,502
1 240001 245000 245,000
1 245001 250000 250,000
3 295001 300000 900,000
1 305001 310000 307,500
1 315001 320000 320,000
1 325001 330000 327,500
1 330001 335000 334,882
1 335001 340000 337,242
1 345001 350000 350,000
1 355001 360000 357,716
1 360001 365000 365,000
1 395001 400000 400,000
2 415001 420000 832,500
1 445001 450000 446,000
1 450001 455000 450,500
1 495001 500000 500,000
1 510001 515000 510,100
1 590001 595000 594,000
1 695001 700000 700,000
1 720001 725000 721,000
1 935001 940000 936,105
1 1815001 1820000 1,817,000
1 3220001 3225000 3,220,691
1 3895001 3900000 3,895,970

3,296 35,000,000



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR
INSURERS, 2016 & LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED (“the Company”)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (the
Code) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby the Insurer is managed in
compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations).

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code and the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are eleven (11), as per the following:
a) Male: 10
b) Female: 1
2. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors

representing minority interests on its Board of Directors (the Board). At present the Board includes:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari

Executive Directors Mr. Moiz Ali CEO

Non-Executive Directors | Mr. Abu Ahmed

Mr. Irshad Ali Shaban Ali Kassim
Mr. Munawar Ali Kassim

Mr. Hafiz Muhammad Hassan Saeed*
MS. Nudrat Fatima*

Mr. Muhammad Abdul Rasheed*

Mr. Haji Ashraf Dhedhi*

Mr. Afzal Shehzad*

Mr. Muhammad Ali*

*subject to the sound and prudent approval from SECP

The independent director meets the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code, Regulations
and Companies Act, 2017.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in
payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or being a member of a stock exchange

has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

5. Casual vacancies occurring on the Board were filled by the directors within 90 days.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” which has been disseminated among all directors and
employees of Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. A complete record of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained by the Company.

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief
Executive Officer, other executive directors and the key officers, have been taken by the Board.
Decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in absence, by a Director elected by
the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board
meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven (7) days before the
meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and Regulations.

While almost all the directors are professionals and senior executives who possess wide experience of
duties of directors, the Company apprises its directors of new laws and regulations and amendments in
the existing ones. The Board has not arranged any Directors’ training program during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Company Secretary or Head of
Internal Audit during the year.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

a) Underwriting, Reinsurance and Co-insurance Committee

Names Category
Mr. Moiz Ali Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad Member
Abdul Muhammad Member

b) Claims Settlement Committee

Names Category




Mr. Moiz Ali Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Ali Member
Mr. Haji Ashraf Dhedhi Member

¢) Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Names Category
Mr. Moiz Ali Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad Member
Mr. Abdul Muhammad Member
15.  The Board has formed the following Board Committees comprising of members given below;

a) Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Names Category
Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad Member
Mr. Moiz Ali Member

b) Investment Committee

Names Category
Mr. Moiz Ali Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad Member
Mr. Muhammad Ali Member
Mr. Abdul Muhammad Acting Chief Financial Officer
16. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It presently comprises of one member which is an

independent director, and the chairman is an independent director. The Composition of the audit
committee is as follow:

Names Category
Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari Independent Director / Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Shehzad Director
Mr. Muhammad Ali Director
17. The board may constitute a separate committee The function of Nomination are

Designated as the nomination committee being performed by the Board



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

The Board is responsible for setting the company’s At present the board provides

Sustainability strategies, priorities and targets to governance and oversight in relation
create Long term corporate value. The board to the Company’s initiatives on

may establish a Dedicated sustainability committee ~ environmental, social and governance
having at least one Female director. (ESG) matters. Nevertheless, the

The requirements introduced recently
By SECP through notification dated
June 12, 2024 will be complied with in
Due course.

The meetings of the committees except Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were
held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company. The terms
of references of the Committees have been formed and advised to the Committees for compliance.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at all
levels within the Company. The Company includes all the necessary aspects of internal control given in
the Code.

The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditor approved by the
Commission in term of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000).
The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm
involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or
director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, the Regulation, or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and the Regulations and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function and the head of internal audit is conversant
with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal
Audit possess such qualification and experience as is required under this Code. Moreover, the persons
heading the underwriting, claims, reinsurance, risk management and grievance functions possess



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

qualification and experience of direct relevance to their functions, as required under section 12 of the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No .XXXIX of 2000):

Names Designation

Mr. Moiz Ali Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Abdul Muhammad Acting Chief Financial Officer & Company
Secretary

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in accordance with the
provision of the Code.

The Board ensures that the risk management system of the Company is in place as per Code.

The Company has set up a risk management function, which carries out its tasks as covered under the
Code.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the Company get itself rated from JCR-
VIS which is being used by its management function/department and the respective committee as a risk
monitoring tool. The rating assigned by the rating agency on December 22, 2014 is “BBB+".

The Board has set up a grievance department/function, which fully complies with the requirements of
the Code.

The Company has not obtained any exemption(s) from the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) in respect of the requirements of the Code.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulation and all
material requirement of Code have been complied.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
PICIC Insurance Limited

Moiz Ali
Managing Director & CEO

Karachi: March 26, 2025



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT

To the members of PICIC Insurance Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (both herein
referred to as ‘the Regulations’) prepared by the Board of Directors of PICIC Insurance Limited (‘the
Company’) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and provision Ixxvi of the
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with
the Regulations and Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm length transaction and transactions which are not executed at arm lengths price and
recording proper justification for using such alternative pricing mechanism and also ensure compliance
with the requirements of Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of audit committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of regulations were observed which are
not stated in the Statement of Compliance:

1) There is only one independent director appointed on the Board contrary to the requirement of the
Regulation 6(1) of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and Code of
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.



2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the company are held
by one person contrary to the requirements of Regulation 9(1) of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

The board has not made carry arrangements to carry out orientation courses. Furthermore, the
directors (excluding exempted directors) have not acquired the certification of directors training
program as per requirements of Regulation 16 and 17 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

There is no formal approval regarding terms and conditions of employment of Chief Finance Officer
and Company Secretary as per requirements of Regulation 20 of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The acting CFO does not possess such qualification and experience as per requirements of
Regulation 22 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Secretary are held by one person, contrary to the
requirements of Regulation 24 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations
2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The company has not established an effective internal audit function as required by the Regulation
31(1) of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

Based on our review, except for the matters mentioned above, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner: Azeem H. Siddiqui
Karachi

UDIN : CR2024102323pwyMO0OdBP

Date: 29 March, 2025



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of PICIC Insurance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of PICIC Insurance Limited (the ‘Company’), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, the statement of profit or loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, because of the significance for the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion
paragraph of our report, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof, do not conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and do not give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and
the Companies Act, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of
the state of Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2024, total comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

i.  The Company’s losses have been accumulated to Rs. 369.102 million as at December 31, 2024
which turn the equity into negative amounting to Rs. 10.974 million. Further, the operating cash
flows of the Company are also negative since 2011. These circumstances, along with the inability
of the Company to meet the minimum solvency requirement and sizeable decline in business
activities, indicate the material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the Company may be unable to realize its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. However, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. In our opinion, Management's use of
the going concern assumption in the financial statements is inappropriate.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
adverse opinion.



Emphasis of Matter

Without further modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the note 12 to the financial statements
which describes the uncertainty related to the ultimate outcome of contingencies and hence no
provision has been made in the enclosed financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, we have determined that there
are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other Information. The Other Information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Adverse
Opinion section above, management use of going concern is inappropriate. Accordingly, we have
concluded that the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that



includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. .

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a



matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of the
report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) because of the significance of matters described in Basis for Adverse Opinion section, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have not been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), however are in agreement with the
books of account

c) except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of the
report investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Azeem H.
Siddiqui.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

UDIN: AR202410232FYm4ls7cl
Date: 29 March, 2025



PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
2024 2023

Note ~ ------- (Rupees in '000')-----
ASSETS
Property and equipment 7 26 1
Investments - Mutual funds 8 78,967 66,632
Taxation - payments less provisions 26,308 26,308
Cash and bank 9 6 32
Total Assets 105,307 92,973
EQUITY AND LIBILITIES
Authorised share capital
125,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs.10 each 1,250,000 1,250,000
Capital and reserves attributable to Company's
equity holders
Ordinary share capital 10 350,000 350,000
Reserves 8,128 6,492
Accumulated loss (369,102) (372,438)
Total Equity (10,974) (15,946)
Liabilities
Underwriting provisions - -
Outstanding claims including IBNR 57,715 65,715
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 17,658 17,658
Other creditors and accruals 11 40,713 25,351
Unclaimed dividend 195 195
Total Liabilities 116,281 108,919
Total Equity and Liabilities 105,307 92,973

Contingencies and Commitments 12 - -

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer Director Director Director Chief Financial Officer



PICIC INSURANCE LIMTIED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Net insurance premium

Net insurance claims
Net commission and other acquisition costs
Insurance claims and acquisition expenses

Management expenses
Underwriting results

Investment income
Other expenses
Results of operating activities

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income:

Note

13

14
15

16

17
18

19

Item that may be subsequently classified to profit or

loss account

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investment

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning per share - basic and diluted

20

2024 2023

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer Director

Director

(7,062) (5,948)
(7,062) (5,948)
12,580 8,247
(300) (300)
5,218 1,999
5,218 1,999
(1,882) (1,237)
3,336 762
1,636 | | 2,802
1,636 2,802
4,972 3,564
0.10 0.02
Director Chief Financial Officer



PICIC INSURANCE LIMTIED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023

Note —ormee (Rupees in '000')------------
Profit after taxation 3,336 762
Other comprehensive income:
Item that may be subsequently classified to profit or
loss account
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investment 1,636 | | 2,802
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,636 2,802
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,972 3,564

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer Director Director Director Chief Financial Officer



PICIC INSURANCE LIMTIED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operating cash flows

(a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received
Management expenses paid
Cash outflow from underwriting activities

(b) Other operating activities
Income tax paid
Other charges
Cash inflow from other operating activities

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Investment activities
Dividends received
Investment in mutual funds
Payments for investments
Fixed capital expenditure
Cash inflow from investing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation to profit and loss account

Operating cash flows

Depreciation / amortisation expense
Net investment Income

Increase in liabilities

Profit after tax

2024

2023

(3,758) (2,479)
(3,758) (2,479)
1,882 1,237

- (1)
1,882 1,236
(1,876) (1,243)
12,580 8,247
(12,580) (8,247)
1,882 1,237
(32) -
1,850 1,237

(26) (6)

32 38

6 32

(1,876) (1,243)
(7) -

12,580 8,247

(7,361) (6,242)

3,336 762

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer



PICIC INSURANCE LIMTIED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance as at January 01, 2023

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2023
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2023

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2024
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer

Capital Reserve Revenue reserves
Issuc.ed, Surplus on Total
subscribed remeasurment of
. Accumulated loss .
and paid-up share availabe for sale
capital investments
(Rupees in '000')
350,000 (373,200) 3,690 (19,510)
- 762 - 762
- - 2,802 2,802
350,000 (372,438) 6,492 (15,946)
- 3,336 - 3,336
- - 1,636 1,636
350,000 (369,102) 8,128 (10,974)
Director Director Chief Financial Officer




PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

2.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

PICIC Insurance Limited (the Company) was incorporated on April 23, 2004 as a public limited company
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed by Companies Act 2017) and registered as a
non-life insurance company by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000. It is engaged in providing all classes of non-life insurance business. The
Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 3rd Floor, Nadir House, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

As per Section 11 of the Insurance Rules 2017, the company is required to maintain minimum paid up
capital of Rs. 500 million net off any discount offered on issue of shares. Currently, the company does
not meet the said requirement.

In accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and as mentioned in the
Insurance Rules, 2017, the minimum solvency requirement (i.e excess of admissible assets over
liabilities) is Rs 150 million. The Company is not meeting the minimum solvency requirement as at
December 31, 2024.

The company has discontinued the insurance business and has applied for surrendering of insurance
license to SECP. However, SECP has rejected the application. The company has, filed a petiton in
Honourable Sindh High Court against the order of SECP.

The company has been reporting recurring losses in prior years, therefore, the Company accumulated
losses amounted to Rs 369.102 million (2023 : Rs. 372.438 million) which have turned the company's
equity into negative amounting to Rs. 10.974 million (2023 : Rs. 15.946 million). Further, the operating
cash flows of the Company are also negative since 2011. These financial statements have been prepared

under the going concern basis for the reason stated below (Refer note 1.6)
Merger of Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited into PICIC Insurance Limited

In the EOGM held on July 06, 2017 , the shareholders of the Company approved the scheme of merger of
PICIC Insurance Limited and Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited (CSF) a going concern, whereby CSF
would be merged with and into the Company. The intention of the management is to convert the
Company into a FMCG Company. Keeping in line with this intention, the management commenced
proceedings for surrendering the insurance license and has filed a petition before the Honourable Sindh
High Court for the merger scheme which is pending till date.

In this regard, the Company has also entered into an agreement with Crescent Star Insurance Limited
(parent company of CSF) for the transfer of insurance related assets and liabilities subject to approval
from the SECP and successful surrender of insurance license.

Based on the above intention and the transfer of operations of Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited, to
the Company, the management is confident that the company will continue as a going concern.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;



2.2,

5.1

PICIC Insurance Limited

- provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, and Insurance Rules, 2017.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act 2017, Insurance Ordinance,
2000, Insurance Accounting Regulations 2017 and Insurance Rules, 2017, shall prevail.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its S.R.O 89(1)/2017 dated February 09,
2017 has prescribed format of the presentation of annual financial statements for general insurance
companies. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by
the SECP.

Standards, interpretations and amendments effective during the current year

The Company has adopted the accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of IFRSs and the
improvements to accounting standards which became effective for the current year, however they do
not have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for certain
investments which are stated at their fair values. Accrual basis of accounting has been used except for
cash flow information.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (rounded upto thousand) which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all period presented in these
financial statements except for format for preparation of these financial statements as disclosed.

Property and Equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
expenditure are charged to the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. The useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Depreciation is charged on additions from the date the asset is available for use and depreciation on
disposals is charged till the date of disposal.

An item of fixed asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal, if any, of assets are included in profit and loss account.



5.2

5.3

5.4

PICIC Insurance Limited

Insurance contract

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Company as insurer has accepted insurance risk
from the insurance contract holders (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affect the insured. Once the contract has been
classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the reminder of its tenure, even
if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are
extinguished or expire.

Insurance contracts are classified into following main categories, depending on the nature and duration
of risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and property;

- Marine, aviation & transport;
- Motor;

- Accident & health; and

- Miscellaneous

These contracts are normally one year insurance contracts except Marine and some contracts of Fire and
property, and miscellaneous class. Normally all Marine insurance contracts and some Fire and property
contracts are of three months period.

These contracts are provided to all types of customers based on assessment of insurance risk by the
Company. Normally personal insurance contracts e.g. vehicle are provided to individual customers,
whereas, insurance contracts of fire and property, marine and transport, accident and other commercial
line products are provided to commercial organization.

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered
to their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on
their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities.

Marine Insurance covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals and any transport or property by
which cargo is transferred, acquired or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and
against third party liability that could be incurred in an accident.

Accident and health insurance contract mainly compensate hospitalisation and outpatient medical
coverage to the insured. These contracts are generally one year contracts.

Other types of insurance are classified in miscellaneous category which includes mainly engineering,
terrorism, personal accident, worker compensation, travel, products of financial institutions and crop
insurance e.t.c.

Deferred commission expense /Acquisition costs

Commission incurred in obtaining and recording policies of insurance and re-insurance are deferred and
recognised as an asset on acquisition of the related policies. Accordingly, these costs are charged to the
profit and loss account as an expense based on the pattern of recognition of related premium revenue.

Provision for unearned premium

Provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium written relating to the unexpired
period of coverage and is recognised as a liability by the Company. This liability is calculated as follows:

- For marine cargo business, as a ratio of unexpired period to the total period of policy applied on
the gross premium of the individual policies; and

- For other classes / line of business, by applying 1/24th method as allowed by the Insurance Rules,
2017
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Premium deficiency reserve

The Company is required as per Insurance Rules, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of premium
deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the
expected future liability for claims and other expenses expected to be incurred after the balance sheet
date in respect of unexpired policies in that class of business at the balance sheet date. The movement in
the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in profit and loss account for the
year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated on historical claim development. Judgment is
used in assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims.
Further, actuarial valuation has been carried out to determine the amount of premium deficiency
reserve in respect of accident and health insurance.

Reinsurance contracts held

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the
potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in
the same period as the related premiums for the direct or accepted insurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated
in @ manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due
from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent
with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and
are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on the balance sheet date. If there is an
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of
the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the profit and

Receivbales and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables relating to insurance contracts are recognized when due. These include
premiums due but unpaid, premiums received in advance, premiums due and claims payable to
insurance contract holders. These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
given less provision for impairment, if any.

If there is an objective evidence that any premium due but unpaid is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of that insurance receivable and recognizes the loss in profit and loss account.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the
Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company presents segments reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified
under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance Rules, 2017. The reported operating segments
are also consistent with the internal reporting process of the Company for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the
basis of underwriting results of each segment. All the Company's business segments operate in Pakistan
only.
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Based on its classification of insurance contracts issued, the Company has five primary business
segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor, accident and health and miscellaneous. The
nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in note 5.4.

Assets and liabilities are allocated to particular segments on the basis of premium earned. Those assets
and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities. Depreciation and amortisation are allocated to a particular
segment on the basis of net premium earned.

5.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits with banks, stamps in hand and
short term investments.

5.10 Revenue recognition

- Premium income under a policy is recognised over the period of insurance from the date of
inception of the policy to which it relates till its expiry in case of marine cargo business whereas for
all other cases of premium income is recognised as a difference between total premium written
and provision for unearned premium using 1/24th method as mentioned in note 5.6 to these
financial statements.

- Commission income is being taken to the profit and loss account, on a time proportionate basis, in
accordance with the pattern of recognition of reinsurance premium to which they relate.

- Administrative surcharge recovered by the Company from policy holders is included in income
currently.

- Return on bank balances and government securities is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Gain / loss on sale / redemption of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the
period of sale / redemption.

- Income from held to maturity investment is recognised on time proportion basis taking into
account the effective yield on the investment. The difference between the redemption and the
purchase price of the held to maturity investment is amortised and taken to the profit and loss
account over the term of the investment.

5.11 Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and
includes transaction costs except for investments designated at fair value through profit and loss.

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where the Company has positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as Held-to-Maturity. Subsequently, these are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and taking any discount or premium on
acquisition.

Investments at fair value through profit and loss account

Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term
fluctuation in price are classified as held-for-trading. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
remeasured at fair value. Gains or losses on investments on remeasurement of these investments are
recognized in profit and loss account.
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5.12  Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if
the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off and the Company intends either to settle the
assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

5.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are regularly
reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current estimate.

5.14 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into
account rebates and tax credits available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that the taxable
profits will be available against which these can be utilised.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

5.15 Impairment of assets

The carrying values of the Company’s fixed assets are reviewed at each financial year end for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the

5.16 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

5.17 Management expenses

Expenses of management have been allocated to various classes of business as deemed equitable by
management. Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are charged under other expenses.

5.18 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual
right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of
ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liabilities is
recognised in the profit and loss account of the current period.
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5.19 Foreign currencies transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani
Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange gains or losses are included in
income currently.

5.20 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / loss per share for its shareholders. Basic earnings /
loss per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings / loss per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in
application of its accounting policies. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on
the management's experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's
financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as

follows:
Note

Taxation 5.14
Impairment of assets 5.15
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2024
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
value as at Rate
N As at B ) As at As at Charge for ) As at December 31,
Description January 01, Additions Disposals December 31, JanuaryO01, the vear Disposals December 2024
2024 2024 2024 v 31, 2024
(Rupees in '000') %
Tangible - Owned
Furniture and fixtures - - - - - - - - - 20
Office equipment 623 - - 623 622 - - 622 1 20
Computer equipment 1,504 32 - 1,536 1,504 7 - 1,511 25 3333
Motor vehicles 45 - - 45 45 - - 45 - 20
2,172 32 - 2,204 2,171 7 - 2,178 26
Intangible - Owned
Computer software 4,000 - - 4,000 4,000 - - 4,000 - 33.33
Total 6,172 32 - 6,204 6,171 7 - 6,178 26
2023
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
As at As at As at Charee for As at value as at
Description January 01, Additions Disposals December 31, JanuaryO01, theg car Disposals December December3l, Rate
2023 2023 2023 v 31,2023 2023
(Rupees in '000) %
Tangible - Owned
Furniture and fixtures - - - - - - - - - 20
Office equipment 623 - - 623 622 - - 622 1 20
Computer equipment 1,504 - - 1,504 1,504 - - 1,504 - 33.33
Motor vehicles 45 - - 45 45 - - 45 - 20
2,172 - - 2,172 2,171 - - 2,171 1
Intangible - Owned
Computer software 4,000 - - 4,000 4,000 - - 4,000 - 33.33

Total 6,172 - - 6,172 6,171 - - 6,171 1
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2024
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
value as at Rate
N As at B ) As at As at Charge for ) As at December 31,
Description January 01, Additions Disposals December 31, JanuaryO01, the vear Disposals December 2024
2024 2024 2024 v 31, 2024
(Rupees in '000') %
Tangible - Owned
Furniture and fixtures - - - - - - - - - 20
Office equipment 623 - - 623 622 - - 622 1 20
Computer equipment 1,504 32 - 1,536 1,504 7 - 1,511 25 3333
Motor vehicles 45 - - 45 45 - - 45 - 20
2,172 32 - 2,204 2,171 7 - 2,178 26
Intangible - Owned
Computer software 4,000 - - 4,000 4,000 - - 4,000 - 33.33
Total 6,172 32 - 6,204 6,171 7 - 6,178 26
2023
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
As at As at As at Charee for As at value as at
Description January 01, Additions Disposals December 31, JanuaryO01, theg car Disposals December December3l, Rate
2023 2023 2023 v 31,2023 2023
(Rupees in '000) %
Tangible - Owned
Furniture and fixtures - - - - - - - - - 20
Office equipment 623 - - 623 622 - - 622 1 20
Computer equipment 1,504 - - 1,504 1,504 - - 1,504 - 33.33
Motor vehicles 45 - - 45 45 - - 45 - 20
2,172 - - 2,172 2,171 - - 2,171 1
Intangible - Owned
Computer software 4,000 - - 4,000 4,000 - - 4,000 - 33.33

Total 6,172 - - 6,172 6,171 - - 6,171 1
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2024 2023
Note = —-—------——| (Rupees in '000')-------------
INVESTMENTS - MUTUAL FUNDS
Available for sale
Mutual Fund 8.1 78,967 66,632

These securities are placed with State Bank of Pakistan as statutory deposit in accordance with the requirements of
clause (a) of sub section 2 of section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Units 31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23

December 31, December 31, i Carrying
Name of fund Cost Carrying Cost val
2024 2023 Value e

e Rupees in thousond —————————eeee

Pakistan Income fund 1,296,690 1,101,564 36,000 78,967 36.000 66.632
2024 2023

-------------- (Rupees in '000')-------------
CASH AND BANK
Cash and other equivalents
Cash in hand - -
Policy stamps and bond papers in hand - -

Current and other accounts

Current accounts 6 32
Savings accounts - -

SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
(Number of shares)

125,000,000 125,000,000 1,250,000 1,250,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
(Number of shares)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
35,000,000 35,000,000 fully paid in cash 350,000 350,000

The company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry equal voting rights.
OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Other creditors and accruals 11.1 40,908 25,546

This includes a net amount that is required to be settled under the scheme of merger with Crescent Star Foods (Private)
Limited (Refer note 1.6)
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12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
12.1 Contingencies

12.1.1 Income tax
The tax assessment of the Company has been finalised upto and including the tax year 2024 on self assessment basis
under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

While finalising the tax audit for the tax year 2007, the Taxation Officer had disallowed certain expenses claimed by the
Company and increased the tax charge by Rs. 3.128 million. The Company has contested the amended order by filing an
appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) which has been decided whereby substantial relief has been
allowed. However, a second appeal has been filed before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue for the remaining
disallowed amount which is pending adjudication.

Further, the Inland Revenue Department has passed amended orders for the tax year 2008, 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
account of minimum taxation on gross receipts of the Company and thereby raising the aggregate tax of Rs. 13.85
million. The Company has contested the amended order by filing an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) which is pending adjudication. The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, is confident of a
favorable outcome in all cases and, accordingly, no provision in this respect has been made in these financial
statements.

Another order on account of withholding tax monitoring for tax year 2018 has been passed whereby a tax demand of Rs.
7.978 million has been raised against which no provision has been made in these financial statements, as the Company
is confident of a favorable outcome.

The tax authorities had filed a writ petition against the Company along with other insurance companies in the High
Court of Sindh on alleged default of non-deduction of withholding tax on payments of insurance premium to non-
resident reinsurer. The petition has been dismissed by the Court in favor of Insurance Companies. The tax impact of the
above amounts to Rs 5.48 million against which no provision has been made in these financial statements, as the

12.1.2 Sales Tax on services

Sindh Board of Revenue has passed various Orders-in-original relating to year 2012 to 2015 whereby a total sales tax
demand of Rs. 542,658,790 has been raised on reinsurance premium & commission. The Company has preferred
appeals before the Commissioner (Appeals) against the said orders which are yet pending for decision. Other insurance
companies have obtained stay from Sindh High Court.

Further, through another order-in-original relating to year 2011, a sales tax demand of Rs. 14,541,000 was raised on
reinsurance premium & commission. The Company had preferred appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) against
the said order which was rejected by the Commissioner (Appeals). The Company has preferred an appeal before the
Appellate Tribunal Sindh Revenue Board which is yet pending for decision. Furthermore, the company has filed a
petition before the Sindh High Court as well.

12.2 Commitments

There were no commitments as on December 31 2024 (2023: Nil).
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NET INSURANCE PREMIUM

Written gross premium
Unearned premium reserve opening
Premium earned

Reinsurance premium ceded
Prepaid reinsurance premium opening
Reinsurance expense

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS EXPENSE

Claims paid
Outstanding claims including IBNR opening
Claims expense

Reinsurance and others recoveries in respect of
outstanding claims opening
Reinsurance and recoveries revenue

NET COMMISSION AND OTHER ACQUISITION COSTS

Commission paid or payable
Deferred commission expense opening

Commission received or recoverable
Commission from reinsurers
Net commission

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Travelling

Advertisement

Amortisation

Legal and professional charges
Printing

Entertainment

Vehicle running expenses

Office repairs and maintenance

Bank charges

Postage, telegram and telephone
Fees, subscriptions and periodicals

INVESTMENT INCOME

Available for sale
- Dividend Income

Less: Investment related expenses

Investment income

PICIC Insurance Limited

2024 2023

2024 2023

3,382 3,065
60 -
33 67
7 -
1,193 587
- 7
24 24
1,745 1,610
62 51
1 1
81 70
474 466
7,062 5,948
12,580 8,247
12,580 8,247
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2024 2023
Note  ------------- (Rupees in '000')-------------
18 OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' remuneration 18.1 300 300
18.1 Auditors' remuneration
Audit and certifications 175 175
Half yearly review 75 75
Code of corporate governance 50 50
300 300
19 TAXATION
- Current 19.1 1,882 1,237
- Prior - -
1,882 1,237

19.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented as the
Company has incurred loss during the year and has accumulated losses in respect of prior periods.

20 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASICANDDILUTED  eeeeeeeeeeees (Rupees in '000')-------------

Profit after tax for the year 3,336 762

(Number in thousand)
Weighted average number

of ordinary shares 35,000 35,000
------------- (Rupees)-------------
Earning per share - basic and diluted 0.10 0.02

20.1 No figure for diluted loss per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument which would
have an impact on loss per share when exercised.

21 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees in '000'
Fees - -
Managerial
. 1,747 1,580 - - - -
remuneration
Utilities 42 42 - - - -
Medical - - - - - -
1,789 1,622
Number of persons 1 1 10 10

Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.
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22 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Fire and Marine, aviation Accident & .
Motor Miscellaneous Aggregate
property damage and transport health

(Rupees in '000')

Gross written premium (inclusive of
surcharges) - - - - - -

Insurance premium earned - - - - - -
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers - - - - - -
Net insurance premium - - - - - -
Commission income - - - - - -
Net underwriting income - - - - - -

Insurance claims - - - - - -
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers - - - - - -

Net claims - - - - - -
Commission expense - - - - - -
Management expense - - - - - (7,062)
Net insurance claims and expenses - - - - - (7,062)
Underwriting results - - - - - (7,062)
Net investment income 12,580
Other income -
Other expenses (300)
Result of operating activities 5,218

Finance costs -
Profit before tax 5,218




Gross written premium (inclusive of
surcharges)

Insurance premium earned

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers
Net insurance premium

Commission income

Net underwriting income

Insurance claims

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers
Net claims

Commission expense

Management expense

Net insurance claims and expenses

Underwriting results

Net investment income
Other income

Other expenses

Result of operating activities

Finance costs
Loss before tax

PICIC Insurance Limited

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Fire and Marine, aviation Accident & .
Motor Miscellaneous Aggregate
property damage and transport health

(Rupees in '000')

8,247

(300)
1,999

1,999




22.1 Other information - Statement of

Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

PICIC Insurance Limited

2024
Fi Marine, aviati Accident
ire and arine, aviation Motor ccident and Miscellaneous Total
property and transport Health
(Rupees in '000')
- - - - - 105,307
- - - - - 105,307
- - - - - 116,281
116,281
2023
Fi Marine, aviati Accident
ire and arine, aviation Motor ccident and Miscellaneous Total
property and transport Health
(Rupees in '000')
- - - - - 92,973
- - - - - 92,973
- - - - - 108,919

108,919
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2024 2023

23  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

Cash and bank deposits

Cash and other equivalents - -
Current and other accounts 6 32
Deposits maturing within 12 months - -

6 32
Investments
-At fair value through other comprehensive income 78,967 66,632
78,973 66,664
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Unclaimed dividend 195 195
Other creditors and accruals 40,713 25,351
40,908 25,546

24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The carrying values of all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The different level by valuation method of financial instruments have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(Level 2); and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

2024
-------------- (Rupees in '000')----=-=-=-=---
Level 1 Total
Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income
- Mutual Fund 78,967 78,967
2023
-------------- (Rupees in '000')----=-=-=-=---
Level 1 Total

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income
- Mutual Fund 66,632 66,632
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk

(i)

Market risk

PICIC Insurance Limited

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and market prices.

(a)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits
Investments

Financial liabilities

Outstanding claims including IBNR
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers
Other creditors and accruals

Unclaimed dividend

Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits
Investments

Financial liabilities

Outstanding claims including IBNR
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers
Other creditors and accruals

Unclaimed dividend

The Company is exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:

2024
Interest / mark-up bearing Interest / mark-up bearing
InRtetrest Maturity | Maturity Maturity | Maturity Total
ates upto one | after one | Sub total | upto one | after one | Sub total
year year year year
(Rupees in '000')
6 - 6 - - - 6
- - - 78,967 - 78,967 78,967
6 - 6 78,967 - 78,967 78,973
- - - 57,715 - 57,715 57,715
17,658 17,658 17,658
40,713 40,713 40,713
- - - 195 - 195 195
- - - 116,281 - 116,281 116,281
2023
Interest / mark-up bearing Interest / mark-up bearing
Interest Maturity | Maturity Maturity | Maturity Total
Rates upto one | after one | Sub total | upto one | after one | Sub total
year year year year
(Rupees in '000')
32 - 32 - - - 32
- - - 66,632 - 66,632 66,632
32 - 32 66,632 - 66,632 66,664
- - - 65,715 - 65,715 65,715
17,658 17,658 17,658
25,351 25,351 25,351
- - - 195 - 195 195
- - - 108,919 - 108,919 108,919




(b) Price risk
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Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company manages
its exposure to such risks by maintaining a diversified portfolio of investments.

(c) Claims development tables

The following table shows the development of claims of all classes over a period of time. The disclosure goes back to the period when the
earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payments.

Analysis on gross basis Accident year

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At end of accident year

One year later

Two year later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recognised in the balance sheet

(ii)  Liquidity risk

2024

2023

2022 and
prior years

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. To guard against the
risk, the Company maintains balance of cash and other equivalents and readily marketable securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities are
also monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. All financial liabilities of the Company are short term in nature.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full as they fall due or can

only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date

to the contractual maturity date on an undiscounted cash flow basis.

2024
Carrying Contractual Upto one More than
amount cash flow year one year
———————————————————— (Rupees in '000") ----------====----
Outstanding claims including IBNR 57,715 57,715 57,715 -
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 17,658 17,658 17,658
Other creditors and accruals 40,713 40,713 40,713
Unclaimed dividend 195 195 195 -
116,281 116,281 116,281 -
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2023
Carrying Contractual Upto one More than
amount cash flow year one year

Outstanding claims including IBNR 65,715 65,715 65,715 -

Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 17,658 17,658 17,658

Other creditors and accruals 25,351 25,351 25,351

Unclaimed dividend 195 195 195 -
108,919 - 108,919 - 108,919 -

(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk also arises in respect of reinsurance contracts as reinsurance ceded does not relieve the Company from its
obligation to policy holders and as a result the Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims ceded to the extent that the reinsurance
operator fails to meet the obligation under the reinsurance arrangements. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. The table below analyses the Company's maximum exposure to credit
risk:

2024 2023
----(Rupees in '000')----
Investments - Mutual funds 78,967 66,632
Bank deposits* 6 32

78,973 66,664

The credit quality of Company's bank deposits and accrued interest can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating . 2024 2023
Rating
Short Long Term
Agency o ,
—————— (Rupees in '000')------
Bank deposits
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ A PACRA 6 32

Capital management

Capital requirements applicable to the Company are set and regulated by the SECP. These requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient paid up
capital and solvency margins. The Company manages its capital requirement by assessing its capital structure against the required capital level on a
regular basis. Currently, the Company has a paid-up capital of Rs 350 million against the minimum required paid-up capital of Rs 500 million set by the
SECP for non-life insurance companies as required under section 11 of insurance rule 2017.

In accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and as mentioned in the Insurance Rules, 2017 (SECP vide SRO 89(1)/2017
dated February 09, 2017), the minimum solvency requirement (i.e excess of admissible assets over liabilities) is Rs 150 million. The Company is not
meeting the minimum solvency requirement as at December 31, 2024.



PICIC Insurance Limited

26 STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY

2024

(Rupees in '000')
ASSETS
Property and equipment 26
Investments - Mutual fund 78,967
Taxation - payments less provision 26,308
Cash and bank 6
Total Assets (A) 105,307

In-admissible assets as per following clauses of section 32(2)
of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

(u)
Total of In-admissible assets (B) 26
Total Admissible Assets (C=A-B) 105,281

Total Liabilities

Outstanding claims including IBNR 57,715
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 17,658
Other creditors and accruals 40,713
Unclaimed dividend 195
Total Liabilities (D) 116,281
Total Net Admissible Assets (E=C-D) (11,000)
Minimum Solvency Requirement (higher of following) 150,000
Method A - U/s 36(3)(a) 150,000

Method B - U/s 36(3)(b) -
Method C - U/s 36(3)(c) -
Deficit in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Requirements (161,000)
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27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no subsequent event effecting the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024.
28. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total average number of employees during the year and as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023
(Number of employees)

Average number of employees during the year 3 3

Number of employees as at December 31, 3 3

28.1. GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER CIRCULAR 10 OF 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended December 2024

Mean gender pay gap 100%
Median gender pay gap 100%
Any other data/ details as deemed relebant Nil

29. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands.

30. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and are authorised
for issue on March 26, 2025.

Chief Executive / Principal Officer Director Director Director Chief Financial Officer
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PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 21* Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of PICIC Insurance Limited will be held
on April 29, 2025 at 9.30 a.m. at 2™ Floor, Nadir House 1. 1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi to transact the following
business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm and approve the minutes of the 20" Annual General Meeting held on April 26, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2024 together with the Chairman’s review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.

As required under Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”), Financial Statements of the
Company have been uploaded on the website of the Company, which can be downloaded from the following
link and/or QR enabled code:

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending December 31, 2025 and fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To transact, the following Special business

Pursuant to the Order of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi dated 26-03-2025, passed in Petition bearing J. C. M.
No. 45/2017, directing that the Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by the company for complying with the
objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer of insurance liabilities and
calculation of swap ratio to the original scheme approved by shareholders on February 6, 2018, be approved by the
shareholders of the company. Accordingly the following special resolution is proposed to be passed with or without
modification for the merger, by way of amalgamation, of Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited (CSF) with and into
the Company, along with all ancillary matters thereto, in accordance with the Modified Scheme of Arrangement, as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The special resolution to be passed is as under:

"RESOLVED THAT THE Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by the company for complying with the
objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer of insurance liabilities and
calculation of swap ratio to the original scheme approved by shareholders on February 6, 2018 for the merger, by
way of amalgamation, of CSF with and into the Company, along with all ancillary matters thereto, be and is hereby
approved and adopted, along with any modifications / amendments required or conditions imposed by the High
Court of Sindh at Karachi, subject to sanction by the Honorable High Court of Sindh at Karachi, in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017."



Notes:

Other Business
To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Board

Moiz Ali
Karachi: March 26, 2025 Managing Director / CEO

Book Closure: The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
April 23, 2025 to April 29, 2025 (both days inclusive) and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration
during this period. Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s F. D. Registrar Services
(SMC-Pvt.) Limited 17" Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I. I. Chundrigar Road Karachi at the close of business
hours April 22, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of transfer of shares and voting rights at the AGM.

All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
is also entitled to appoint another member of the Company as his / her proxy to attend, speak and vote for him /
her. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted to the Company. A proxy must be a member of the Company. A member shall not be entitled
to appoint more than one proxy to attend any one meeting. The instrument of proxy duly executed should be
lodged at the Karachi Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. The form
of proxy must be witnessed with the addresses and CNIC numbers of witnesses, certified copies of CNIC of
member and the proxy member must be attached and the revenue stamp should be affixed and defaced on the
form of proxy. Proxy Form in English and Urdu languages is available on company website
WWwWw.picicinsurance.com.

The members are advised to bring their ORIGINAL Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) and those
members who have deposited their shares in Central Depository System should also be cognizant of their CDC
Participant ID and Account Number at the meeting venue. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors'
resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the
meeting.

The Company has arranged for participation of members in general meeting through electronic means (i.e.,
video-link, webinar, zooming etc.). In this regard, the interested sharcholders can request by providing the
relevant information (i.e. Name of the Shareholder, CNIC Number, Folio / CDC Account Number, Cell
Number, Email Address etc.) to the Company Secretary at least 48 hours before the time of AGM at Email
Address: abdul.muhammad@picicinsurance.com.

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, (the "Regulations") the right to vote
through electronic voting facility and voting by post shall be provided to members of the Company for the
special business proposed to be transacted at the meeting in the manner and subject to conditions contained in
the Regulations.

Procedure for E-Voting:

L. Detail of e-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the Company who
have valid cell numbers / e-mail addresses (Registered e-mail ID) available in the Register of Members
of the Company by the end of business on April 22, 2025. Members who intend to exercise their right
of vote through E-voting shall provide their valid cell numbers and email addresses on or before at
05:00 PM on April 22, 2025.

IL. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through
electronic signature or authentication for login.



I1I. Members shall cast vote for agenda items online from April 23, 2025 at 09:00 AM till April 28, 2025
at 5:00 PM. Voting shall close on April 28, 2025, at 5:00 PM. A vote once cast by a Member, shall
not be allowed to be changed.

Iv. Company has appointed an E-voting Service Provider in terms of Regulation 5 of the Companies
(Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

b. Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot:

L. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members,
Ballot Paper is available on the Company's website www.picicinsurance.com to download.
II. The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a copy of

Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post
at the Company's office at address, 3rd Floor Nadir House, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, or through
email address at April 28, 2025 one day before the AGM, i.e., on April 28, 2025 before 5:00 PM. A
postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be considered for voting. The signature on the
Ballot Paper shall match with signature on the CNIC / Company's record.

6. The members are requested to notify the Company / Share Registrar of any change in their address.

7. Members have the option to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting
through email. Members can give their consent in this regard on prescribed format to the Shares Registrar. The
Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 are also available on the Company's
website: www.picicinsurance.com

8. In accordance with the directive issued by the SECP vide it is S.R.O. 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025 the
Company would like to inform all the shareholder that no gifts will be distributed at the meeting.

9. Form of Proxy is enclosed.
Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning the Special Business

Subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, under the Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by
the company for complying with the objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to
transfer of insurance liabilities and calculation of swap ratio to the original scheme approved by sharcholders on
February 6, 2018, (the “Modified Scheme of Arrangement”), Crescent Star Foods (Private) Limited (“CSF”) shall be
merged / amalgamated with and into (the “Company”) by transfer to and vesting in the Company the whole of the
undertaking and business of CSF, together with all the properties, assets, rights, liabilities, quotas and obligations of
every kind and description of Company. The said merger will take effect from the calendar quarter immediately
preceding the date of filing of certified true copies of the order of the Court (sanctioning the Modified Scheme of
Arrangement) with the Registrar of Companies, or at such other date stated by the Court.

The proposed merger / amalgamation of CSF with and into the Company shall be effective by way of the Modified
Scheme of Arrangement, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 279 to 282 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Modified Scheme of Arrangement is attached and available for inspection along with the original scheme and other
allied documents to any person entitled to attend this Meeting, at the office of the Company Secretary, situated at 3rd
Floor, Nadir House, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, during normal office hours.

The Directors of the Company and CSF are interested in the Modified Scheme of Arrangement to the extent of their
respective shareholdings in the Company and CSF (to the extent applicable). The effect of the Modified Scheme of

Arrangement on the interests of these directors does not differ from its effect on the like interests of other members.

The Directors of the Company shall not continue as the Directors of the Company after the merger.



In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and recommended the merger /
amalgamation of CSF with and into the Company in terms of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement.

Statement under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning the Special Business

The statement setting forth the terms of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement and explanation of its effects, including
the interests of the directors of the Company and the effect of those interests and other ancillary information may be
obtained upon request by any person entitled to attend this Meeting from the office of the Company Secretary situated at
3rd Floor, Nadir House, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, free of cost during normal office hours.

The aforesaid statement is also enclosed along with this notice of the Meeting.
STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 281 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

ACCOMPANYING THE NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PICIC INSURANCE LIMITED

Pursuant to the Order dated 26-03-2025, passed by the High Court of Sindh at Karachi in Petition bearing 45/2017,
under sections 279 to 282 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Court has directed, inter alia, that a meeting of the members
of PICIC Insurance Limited be convened for the sanction of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement, submitted by the
company for complying with the objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer
of insurance liabilities and calculation of swap ratio to the original scheme approved by shareholders on February 6,
2018, pertaining to the merger, by way of amalgamation, of CSF with and into PICIC Insurance Limited (the
“Company”), along with all ancillary matters thereto, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Modified Scheme of Arrangement”).

A copy of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement (along with its annexures and other allied documents ) may be
obtained from the office of the Company Secretary, situated at 3rd Floor, Nadir House, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
free of cost during normal business hours.

The notice issued and published to the shareholders of the Company is for the purpose of convening a meeting of the
members of the Company, as directed by the Court, for the purpose of passing the following special resolution for
obtaining approval in respect of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by the company for complying with the
objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer of insurance liabilities and
calculation of swap ratio and the merger / amalgamation contemplated thereunder:

"RESOLVED THAT THE Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by the company for complying with the
objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer of insurance liabilities and
calculation of swap ratio for the merger, by way of amalgamation, of CSF with and into the Company, along with
all ancillary matters thereto, be and is hereby approved and adopted, along with any modifications / amendments
required or conditions imposed by the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, subject to sanction by the Honorable High
Court of Sindh at Karachi, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017."

As required under section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the above resolution has to be passed at the meeting of the
shareholders convened pursuant to the Order of the Court, by a majority representing three-fourths of the shareholders of
the Company, present in person or by proxy, and voting at this Meeting. The sanctioning of the Modified Scheme of
Arrangement and the making of other appropriate orders in connection therewith will be considered by the Court after
the Modified Scheme of Arrangement is approved as aforesaid.

The principal object of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement submitted by the company for complying with the
objections raised by Securities and Commission of Pakistan (SECP) related to transfer of insurance liabilities and
calculation of swap ratio remains to effect the merger, by way of amalgamation, of CSF with and into the Company with
modifications as proposed. The said merger shall be with effect from the calendar quarter immediately preceding the
date of filing of certified true copies of the order of the Court (sanctioning the Modified Scheme of Arrangement) with



the Registrar of Companies, or at such other date stated by the Court, by transfer to and vesting in the Company the
entire business and undertaking of CSF, together with all assets, properties, rights, liabilities and obligations of every
description of CSF, subsisting immediately preceding the Sanction of Modified Scheme by Court, without any further
act or deed or documents being required to be carried out, executed, registered or filed in respect of such transfer,
vesting, and / or assumption, in the manner stipulated under the Modified Scheme of Arrangement. Thereafter CSF shall
be dissolved without going into winding up, in the manner prescribed under the Modified Scheme of Arrangement.

In consideration for the merger, shares of the Company shall be issued to the shareholders of CSF, in the manner
contemplated under the Modified Scheme of Arrangement.

All information / particulars with respect to the merger / amalgamation and the arrangement in respect thereof, including
all ancillary matters thereto, are provided in detail in the Modified Scheme of Arrangement, including the objects and
benefits of the merger / amalgamation. Approval of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement by the shareholders of the
Company shall also constitute an approval by way of special resolution from the shareholders of the Company with
respect to all matters prescribed under the Modified Scheme of Arrangement, including the increase in the authorized
share capital of the Company.

The directors of the Company are interested in the Modified Scheme of Arrangement to the extent of their respective
shareholdings in the Company and CSF (to the extent applicable). The effect of the Modified Scheme of Arrangement on
the interests of these directors does not differ from its effect on the like interests of other members.

IN THE HIGH COURT OF SINDH AT KARACHI
[ORIGNAL COMPANY JURISDICTION]
JCM NO.45/2017
Under section 279, 280,281 & 282
The companies Act, 2017
In the matter of PICIC Insurance Ltd And Crescent Star Foods (Pvt.) Ltd

PICIC Insurance Ltd Petitioner No. 1
AND
Crescent Star Foods (Pvt.) Ltd Petitioner No. 2

STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF PETITIONERS

It is stated for and on behalf of the petitioners that in view of the objections raised by SECP In the instant JCM-Merger,
attached is the modified/ revised/amended Scheme of Arrangement (Annex. ‘A’)

It is stated accordingly.

M Zeeshan Abdullah
Counsel for the Petitioner



AMMENDED/MODIFIED
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
UNDER SECTIONS 279 TO 282 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
INVOLVING
PICIC INSURANCE] LIMITED
(PICICIL)

AND
CRESCENT STAR FOODS (PVT) LTD
(CSF)

AMMENDED/MODIFIED SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

For the amalgamation of PICIC Insurance Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “PICICIL”) and Crescent Star Foods
(hereinafter referred to as “CSF”’) the consequent transfer to and vesting in PICIC of all the Assets and Liabilities of CSF
and dissolution, without winding-up of CSF (PVT.) Ltd.

FOLLOWING PARAS OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BE SUBSTITUTED AS UNDER:

Para 6

Upon sanction of this scheme, the authorized share capital of CSF will be merged with the authorized share capital of
PICIC. The authorized share capital of PICIC shall thus stand to PKR 79,500,000,000 (Rupees Seventy Nine billion Five
hundred million) divided into 7,950,000,000 share of Rs.10 each and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of PICIC shall stand amended. Approval of this scheme shall also include and constitute an approval by way
of special resolution from shareholders of PICIC to the alteration of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
PICIC. For Increase of authorized share capital of PICIC to PKR 79,500,000,000 (Rupees Seventy Nine billion Five
Hundred Million) as required in terms of Act, 2017.

Para 7

RATTIONALE FOR AMALGAMATION / MERGER

7.1 ECONOMIES OF SCALE

PICICIL as insurance company is unable to meet regulatory Requirements of an insurance company. The amalgamation
of CSF into PICICIL with PICICIL being the surviving entity will Safeguard the interest of all stakeholders especially
Shareholders of PICICIL.PICICIL as the surviving entity object Clause will be amended to include business of Fast
Moving Goods (FMGC) and such business which is legally allowed Which will be advantageous to the shareholders .

7.8 OVERALL BENEFITS

The amalgamation will be advantageous to shareholders, Employees and all stakeholders as the surviving Company will
Be doing business of FMGC giving better opportunity to Shareholders and other stakeholders and is likely to
Experience economies of scale, reduction in administrative Expenses which is likely to enhance profitability and
prospect of higher dividend yield to shareholders may be expected.
Para 9
CONTRACTS

The following shall be transferred without limitation from the CSF and vested in PICICIL.

i contracts entered into by or substituting in favour the which remain in whole or in part to be
i All d into by bstituting in f: he CSF which in in whol i b
performed, inclusive of all right and obligations of the CSF arising there-under:



(i)

Para 11

All contracts, agreements, trusts, leases, hires, rentals, sub-leases, tenancies, conveyances, grants, instruments
of transfer, engagements, commitments, and arrangements entered into by the CSF or substituting in favour of
the CSF, inclusive of all rights and obligations of CSF arising there-under:

LIABILITIES

Para 11 of the Scheme of Arrangement under “Insurance Liabilities” is deleted.

Para 17

CONSIDERATION FOR THE AMALGAMATION/ MERGER

1.

Para 18

As consideration for the amalgamation / merger in terms of scheme, 7,907,794,516 ordinary shares of PICICL
of Rs.10 each shall be allotted, credited and fully paid-up, in the swap-ratio of 263.593 Shares of Rs.10, each of
PICICL for every 1 share of Rs.10 each of CSF (swap-ratio) to the members of CSF who are registered holders
of the ordinary shares of PICICL shall be determined in the same proportion in which they hold shares in CSF.
Fractional shares shall not be issued .All fractions less than a share shall be consolidated into whole shares
which shall be disposed by PICICL as determined by the Board of Directors.

CSF shall from the date on which the ordinary shares of PICICL are allotted by PICICL to the shareholders of
CSF, as stated above, stand dissolved without winding up.

The ordinary shares of PICICL upon issuance and allotment pursuant to this scheme shall rank paripasu with
the existing shareholders of PICICL in all respects and shall be entitled to all dividends, bonus, right issue
declared after the completion date.

The “swap ratio given in para (vi) in the para-wise comments of the Additional registrar of Companies

Registration Office on Behalf of SECP is accepted.

INTERESTS OF CUSTOMERS AND CREDITORS

1.

THIS Scheme shall not in any manner affect the interest of any customer or creditor. The merged company
shall be bound to carry out the terms and conditions connected therewith with same legal effect and force as if
this Scheme was not sanctioned.

This modified / amended Scheme be treated as integral part of the original Scheme of Arrangement and shall be deemed
to have it overridden to the above extent.



Proxy Form
Annual General Meeting

T
Of e being a member of PICIC Insurance Limited and
holder of ... Ordinary shares as per Registered Folio
N Ot and / or CDC Participant I.D.
NO. e Sub-Account NO........cooiiiiii CNIC
NO...oie e or Passport NO........cooiiiiiiii Hereby
appoint Of
who is also a member of the company, Folio No...................ooiiiiini, or failing
him/her.........ooco, Of as my/our Proxy in

my/our absence to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the company to be held on Tuesday, April 29, 2025 at 9:30 AM at the
2" Floor Nadir House 1.1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this .................. dayof.....coooviiiiints 2025

1. Witness:
Signature. ...
Name. .. ..o
AdAreSs. .....coovveeeiiiie e Rupee Five
................................................................. Revenue
CNIC or Passport NO..........ccc.ueivvieiiieeeennn.. Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Note:

1. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the
company at 3 Floor, Nadir House |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi not later than 48
hour before the meeting.

2. CDC Shareholders and their Proxies are each requested to attach an attested
Photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy
form before submission to the company.

3. The Shareholders having shares deposited with the Central Depository Company
(CDC) are requested to bring their Original Computerized National Identity Card and
CDC account number for verification.
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